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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Nerofix Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinien

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Merofix Private Limited (“the
Company"}, which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Chanages in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations alven to us,
the aforesald financial statements give the Information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(5As), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company In accordance with the ‘Cede of Cthics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsiblilities In accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained s
sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Director's report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibllity is to read the other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Respensibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows

nd changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
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accepted in India, Including the Indlan Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting recoerds In accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
ouarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decislons of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and malntain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtaln an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abillty to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based an
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
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the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events In a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies In internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b}

c)

(d)

(e}

4]

(g}

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations recelved from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;
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il

fii.

vl

The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
and as disclosed in the note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or Kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), Including foreian entities ("Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, and
as disclosed in the note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been recsived
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding FParty
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

MNo dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 |s applicable for the
Company only w.e.i. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

3 Act
Membership Number: 110759 Sk

MUMBA, |*

=,

N

UDIN: 23110759BGVZRZ8162

Flace of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 02 May 2023
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Annexure 1 referred to In paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date on the financial statements of Nerofix Private Limited

Re: Nerofix Private Limited ("the Company")

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i (@

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e}

(i (a)

(b}

(i

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets,

All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the |lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the
name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benaml Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in agaregate for each class of
Inventory were not noticed in respect of such physical verification.

As disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year
on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined
by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the guarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided loans, advances in the
nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companles, firms, Limited
Liability Fartnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to repart on
clause 2(iiiXa), (b), (c), (d), (e} and (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities glven in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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)

vi)

(viiy (a)

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is nat applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of adhesives and
are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and recards have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to
the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were cutstanding,
at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,

Cviii)

(ix) (&)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

() (a)

income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as Income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3({viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company,

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authaority.

Term loans were applied for the purpese for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
used funds raised on short-term basis aggregating to Rs. 625 lakhs for long term purposes
representing repayment of loans.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, assoclate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, assoclate or Joint Venture. Accordinaly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
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(xi) (&)

(b)

(c}

(xii}

Cxiii)

hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been fliled by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audlt
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)}a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the detalls have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable
to the Company.

(xiv}{a)The Company has implemented interna! audit system on a voluntary basis which Is

commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business though it is not
required to have an (nternal audit system under Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the

o)

period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

Cxvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not

applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)a) of the
Crder Is not applicable to the Company.

{(b) The Company has not conducted any Mon-Banking Financlal or Housing Finance activities

without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)c) of the
Crder Is not applicable to the Company.

(d)There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on

clause 3(xviXd) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. In the immediately
preceding financial year the Company had Incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 13.85
lakhs.
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There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to repart on Clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, the
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions and considering the Company's current liabilities exceeds the
current assets by Rs. 617 lakhs, the Company has obtained the |etter of financial support
from the Holding Company, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabllities, existing at the date of balance sheet,
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
and our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable and

accordingly, the requirements to repert on clause (xx) (a) and (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

BC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reqgistration Number: 324982E/E300003

*

& MU ruﬂm),*
per Anil Jobanputra AN J&]
Partner Bt/

Membership Number: 110759 “ééur:r_,/

UDIN: 23110759BGVZREB162

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 02 May 2023
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Annexure 2 - To the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the financial statements of
Merofix Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nerofix
Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinien on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAIl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtalning an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinicn on the Company's internal financlal controls with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements
A company's Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
reparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
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accounting principles. A company's internal financial centrols with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material efifect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contral with reference to financial
statements may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policles or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financlal controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Mote issued by the ICAL

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reagistration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner 0
Membership Number: 110759 ==

UDIN: 23110759BGVZRZB162

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 02 May 2023



MEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT JIST MARCH, 2023
Amount in Likhs

Ak at Az ut
il 31 March, 2023 31 Mareh, 222
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Propenty, Plant and Equipment 3 153947 1,990 38
Ripht of e Assal (RO 1 15876 163,77
Intangpble Assets 5 61594 Bl B0
914,19 A, 160,95
Fmanginl Asseis
Orilser Finamalal Assers ] 13.36 12.9]
13,36 129
Nom Current Tax Assets (MNz)) 7 248 014
Deferred Tax Assets (nef) 16 .57 .
Diher Non-current Assels ] 1{1 20
Total Non-current Assels . 293362 L1 00
Curreni Asseds
Inversiones 9 1.540.36 |, 72241
Fenamcial Ass=is
Trade Recetvables 10 3,079 94 215756
Cash amd Cresh Equivalents 11 50,49 1125
306443 235781
iher Current Assels 2 134.60 13187
Tatal Current Asscts 453430 4,2 L2.A10
Total Assets 7.768.01 7, 1%
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily Share Capital 13 2000, 2,000,00
Cither Exquiry ] (820,60} {E36 BO)
Total Equity 117940 1,173.20
Linkilities
Non-current Linkilities
Finnneal Linbilities
Busroisings 15 ALK, TS 1,093 75
468 7% 1,0E3 75
Provision I 4300 293
Taotul Mon-current Liahilities 1184 L1668
Current Linbilities
Finaneinl Linbdliies
Barrowmgs 18 212500 1,467 .57
Trade Pavables 19
Teand Ourstanding dues of Mecro, Smll and 2 48 1002 54
tedivm Enterpriscs
Tl Outstanehing dues of creduors olbier than 345088 325163
Maero, Small and Medinm Enterprises
500240 4. 837.74
Other Finaseial Linbilities . ] 14973 |62 56
Other Cierrent Liabilities 1] 106,27 | &4
Short Term Provisons 2 1831 bl
Tatal Current Linhilities 6,076, 77 509631
Total Linhilitics 658861 6,214
Total Equity and Linbilities 7,768,01 7. 380.19
Significant Accounting Policies 1
The notes referved bo above form an miegral par of hess Fieasci) Statsments A
As per oair atoched report of even dale For and an belall of Board of Directors of Nerofis Fl{&j‘.rmll:d
{"""fﬂpl Wi
ForSRBC & COLLP Prushint Pai Prishiant Murkar
Chartered Accountanis i Clheel Fimaneial OiTicer

ICAL Finn Registrotion: Mo 324%HIE/E300003

e Anil Jolnipaira subirnmanian
Partiser Direetor ¢ Coinpuny Secrutary
Meznbership Mo, 110759 DM 08245250 ACS 20307

Bumbm banbim

My 3. 2023 May 2, 2023



NEROFIX 'RIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023

Income
Revenue from Cperstions
Other Income
Total lncome

Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed
Chonges in lnventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-
Employee Benefits Expense
Finanee Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Other Expensas

Total Expenses

Profit/(Loss) Belore Tax
Tax Expense
Current Tax
Dieferred Tax
Totul Tax Expense

Profit/Loss) for the period
Other Comprehensive Income

() Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liobility
Total Comprehensive Income [or the period

Earnings per Equity Shore:
Basic and Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies

Amount in Lakhs
e Year Ended Year Ended
31 Murch, 2023 31 March, 2022
23 1468039 11041 68
24 6.51 7.7
14,686,90 11,4942
25 11.567.40 906823
26 {31.63) (201.65)
27 T83.00 657,50
28 21298 23118
9 330,18 13578
30 |.812.68 13255
I-i,ﬁ'?ﬁ.EI 1141755
10.09 (364.13)
1.57 =
1] (15T -
(0.00) -
10,09 [368.13)
(3.89) (0.88)
6.20 (360.01)
0.5 (1.54]

1

The notes referred (o shove form an integral part of these Financinl Smumr.ﬂls

As per our nitnehed report of even date

ForSRBC& COLLFP
Chartered Aceountants
ICAl Firm Repistration No. 324982 E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Mo, 110758

Mumbai
Moy 2, 2023

For and on behol £ of Board of Directors aff Nl:rufq_ﬁml: Limifed

DM 08243250

Mumbegi
May 2, 2023

e /
I’nu ani Murhr

Chief Finangial Officer

WA

liu inl Subramanian
Company
ACS 20207




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023

Cuali Flow From Operating Activities

PFrofiiy Los) Before Tox
Adpustments for

Depreciation and Amonisation Expenses

Finance Costs
Provision for Dosbtful debis

Operating Profit Before Working Caplial Changes

Wirking Copatnl Adjustments

Adjustment for (increase) / decrease in operating pesels

Inventories
Trade Receivables
b Current Assets

Adiustment [or increase / (decrease) in operting linbilities:
Teade payahles and Cther liabil ies

[hrect Taxes Paid {pet)

Met conh Now fream [ (used o) operating sctivities

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchese of Property, Plant and Equipmen!, Right of Lise Assey

and Cither [ntangible Assets

Net cosh fows Trom / (used in) nvesting netivithes

Cath Flow Fram Fluanelng Activities
Reperynent of long term borrowangs
Proceeds from Short term boerowings (Net)

Interest Paid

Net cash flows from [ {pred in) fonocing activities

Met Inerease ! {Deerense) in Cosh pod Cosh Equivilents
Caly gind Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the yenr
Cosh ol Cash Equivalents as the end of the year

Cosh and Cash Equivalents ui the end of the year, the

eaniponents belng:
Cash on Home
Bnnks Holpnees

Net Increase £ (Decrense) as disclosed abhove

Moles:

(i} Fugures in brackets are outflows/'deductions,

Amesiiind b Labdiy

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2023 31 March, 1021
1009 (J68.13)
IM018 13678
21298 FETME]
2982 1750
571098 8346
583.07 217.33
152035 (38521,
(757.30) (184.24)
691 4561
33047 | &9, 34
154,59 JELE3
(5.66) (5.04)
3893 THT.AT
[83.02) (65,37
(83.02) (69.32)
(625.00) {625.00)
65743 14114
(209.1T) {234 G8)
[176.67) (T18.54)
§9.34 (0.29)
015 0,54
H9.4% 025
033 025
B9.16 -
H9.4% 0,25
19,49 025

(i} The above Cash Flow Statement is prepared under the “Indineet Method” os sot aut in the Indion

Accounting Sandasds (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flows

A per our witnched repon of even date

For5REBC & CO LLP
Charfered Accoumants

ICA! Firm Registrtion Mo, J24982E/E300003

per Anil Jolanputes
Parmer
BMembership Mo, | 10759

Wumibai
May 2, 2023

4

*
a MUMBAI =
== ==

May 2, 2023

Prashant Pai

For and on behall of Board of Direciors of Mernfix Privite Linw['

Prashant Murkar
Chuel’ Frmanclal OfTicer

Rukmini Solrumanian
Company Secretary
ACS 20207



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023

A - Egui in

Amouat in Lukhs

Number of Shares

Bolonee ns ot 01 April, 2021 2,00,00,000 2,000
Issued during the period . -
Bolance s at 31 March, 2022 200,000,000 2,0
Issued during the period - -
Balunee us at 31 Muarch, 2023 2,000 00 2,000

B - Other Equity Amonnt in Lakhs
Particulars Retained Earnings Totul

Balance as at 01 Aprll, 2022 (326.80) (826.80)
Profiti Loss) for the period 10.0g 10,09
Other Comprehensive Income{(Expense) (3.59) {1.B9)
Totsl Comprehensive Income lor the period (820.60) (520.60)
Balunee as at 31 Mareh, 2023 (820,60) (E20.060)

Amount in Lalihs

Particulurs Hetnlned Earnings Tuotal

Balance as af | April, 2021 (457.79) (457.79)
Profitf{ Loss) for the period [368.13) (368.13)
Oither Comprehengive [ncame (0.58) (0.38)
Total Comprehensive Income for the perlod (R26.80) {H26.80)
Balance us nt 31 March, 2022 {826.50) (B26.850)

The nites referred to above form an miegml poard of these Finunciol Statements

c

As per our gitached report of even date

ForSREC& COLLP
Chartered Accountanis
IC AL Firm Registration Mo, 324983 EEI00003

per Anil Jubanputrn
Partner
Membership No. 110759

Tlumbgi
May 2, 2023

Far and on belalf of Board of Directors af Nerofix Privae Lirmlug:"
o

Prashant Pal

Diectar
N o8 11544) |

1M (E245250

Mumbai
May 2, 2023

o
i

Proshant Murlor
Chiel Financial Officer

(

Rubeili
Company Secretory
ALCS 20207
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 5T MARCH, 2023

Note 1:

i

Corporate Informatign

Nerofix Private Limited (the 'Company’) is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act. The Company's has been incorporated on 17 July, 2019. The registerad office of the
Company is located at Arihant Aura, B-202, 2nd Floor, Plot Mo D13/1, TTC Industrial Area, Turbhe (MIDC), Thane
Belapur Road, Navi Mumbal , Maharashtra 400705 . The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing of
Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants.

Kansai Meralac Paints Limited is holding company of Nerofix Private Limited and is based and listed in India. Financial
Statements of Kansal Nerolac Private Limited are available In public domain,

Basi Pre []
Statement of compliance

The Financlal Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section |33 of Companies Act, 2013, (the Act’)
and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time,

Details of the Company's Accounting Policies are included in Mote 2.1,
Functional and Presentatlon currency

The Financial Statements are presented In Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional CUFFEnCy,

Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial assets and liabllities
which are measured at fair value.

Use of estimates and judgements

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimatian uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabllities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factars that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the periad in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Business combinations and Intanglble Assets

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires the
identifiable intangible assets and contingent consideration 1o be Fair valued In arder to ascertain the net fair value of
Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Significant estimates are required to be made in
determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These valuations are conducted by
independent valuation experts.

Critical Judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have the most significant effect on the amount recognised In the financial statements.

Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company's defined benefit obligation.
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates
of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit uhrfgarin‘:/




MEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

Contingences and Commitments
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and ather claims against the
Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably,
we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed In the notes but are not provided for in the
financial statements, Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, we do
not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on our financial position or profitabilicy.

ill) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial vear are discussed below:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment
As described in Note 2.1(lib(0), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment Allowarnces for Trade Recelvables

The Company makes Impairment Allowances far Trade Receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade and other receivables. The identification of impairment allowance requires use of judgments and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the ariginal estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and impairment allowances in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowances for Inventories

Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying
value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an
allowance is required to be made in the financlal statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. Management |s
satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving Inventories has been made in the financial
statements.

Falr value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannat be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuatlon techniques, including the
discounted cash flow model, which involve various Judgements and assumptions.

Defined Benefit Plans

The costs and present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other long-term employee benefits are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation irivolves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in future. These include the determination of appropriate discount rate, salary escalation

rate, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, defined benefit plans are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are

reviewed at each reporting date.
1T h/
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2023

Note 2.1:

ni nt Acc ting Policies
i) Classification of Assets and Liabilities

Schedule Il to the Act, requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non-
current.

(@) An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria-

() it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's
normal operating cycle;

() it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(iii) it Is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date: or

(v} it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

(b All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current.

(c) Aliabllity shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(i} it Is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle:
(i) it Is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:
(ifi) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) the Company does not have an untonditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

(d All liabilities other than current liabilities shall be classified as non-current.
Ii) Operating Cycle

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities,

iil) Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Recognition and Measurement

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, if any.

The cost of an jtem of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates
and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The initial estimate of
the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is
included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment,

The cost of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to warking
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and remaving the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital Work-in-
progress. Item of Capital Work-in-progress is carried at cost using the principles of valuation of
item of property, plant and equipment till it is ready for use, the marnner in which-intended by

L

management. ; AN 'U/
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

(b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

(c) Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is allocated on a systematic
basis over its useful life, The Company provides depreciation on the straight line method. The
Company belleves that straight |line method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on internal technical
evaluation, the management believes useful lives of the assets are appropriate. The depreciation
method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, If there has been a significant
change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the
asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as
a change in an accounting estimate In accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Paolicies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to
the total cost of the item is depreciated separately,

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless
itis included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current period is as follows:

Useful Lives Us_Eﬁ‘l Lives
(In years) (n yesarsj
Asset Class - as per Companies |~ 25 estimated
Act, 2013 by the
b Company
Buildings 30-60 30-60
Plant and Equipments 10-20 10-20
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10
Office Equipments 5 5
Computers 3-6 3-6

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed off).

(d) Disposal
The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or

when no future economic benefits are expected from |ts use or disposal. The gain or loss arisirig
from the derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in Statement of

Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised.
AT \‘{ (/
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

iv) Lease

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a cantract is, or contains, a lease, That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an ldentlfied asset for 2 period of time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value asset. The Company recognises lease llabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use asset representing the right to use the underlying assar.

{a) Right of Use Asset (ROU)

The Company recognises Right of use assel at the commencement date of the leass fi.e., the date the
underlying assel is avallable for use), Right of use asser are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impaitment losses, and adjusted far any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost al Right
of use asset Includes the amount of lease |iabilities recognised, inltal direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at ar before the commencement data lzss any lease incentives received. Right of use asset are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease tarm and the estimated wseful [ives of tha
asset. as fallows:

|Leasehold land 75 Years

If awnership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase aption, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asser. The Right
of use asset are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accaunting policies an Impairment of non-financial
ASSAl.

(b} Lease Liahilities

At the commencement date of the [sase, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the pPresent
value of lease payments ta be made over the [sase tarm. The lease payments include fixed payments
{including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and ameunts expected ta be pald wnder residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease torm reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventaries) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment oceurs. In caleulating the presant value af lease payments, the Company
uses ts incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amaunt of lease liabiiities is increased 1o
reflect the accretion of interest and redueed for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease labllities is remeasured If there is a maodification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future paymants resulting from a change In an index or rate used 1o determing
such lease paymants) ar a changa In the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying assat,

Lease llzbllity, If any and ROU asset have hoeen separately presented in the Balance Sheat and lpase payments,
if any have been classified as financing cash flows, T

(€} Short-term leases and leases of low-value asset

The Company applies the short-term Jease recognition exemption ta its shart-term leases of praperty,
machinery and equipment (.., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
cammencement date and do not contain 2 purchase option). It also applies the lease of Iow-value asset
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered o be low value, Lease payments on
shart-tarm leases and leases of low-value asset are recognised as expense on a stralght-line basis over the

lease term.
Company as a lessor

Leases In which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising Is accounted Tor on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms, Inltlal direct costs incurred in negatiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rants are recognised as revenua In the pariod In which they are sarned,

NMLUMBEAT
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

v) Other Intangible Assets
(a) Recognition and Measurement

An Intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.
Intangible assets are initially measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any.

(b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

(c) Amortisation

The Company amortises Other Intangible Assets on the straight line method. The Company
believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The amortisation method is reviewed
at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

The estimated useful lives for the current period is as follows:

Useful Lives (in years)
Asset Class - as estimated by the Company
Technical Know How 10
Non Compete Fee 5
Customer Relationship 5

MUMBAI

|




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2023

vi) Employee Benefits
(a) Short-term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amaunt expected to
be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits:
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

(i) Provident and Family Pension Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits in
respect of provident and family pension fund, in which both the employees and the Company
make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees’ eligible salary (currently
12% of employees’ eligible salary). The contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner (RPFC) which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

In respect of contribution to RPFC, the Company has no further obligations beyond making the
contribution, and hence, such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution Plan.
The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIM!TED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

(c)
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Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that emplayees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting
that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset
celling). In order to calculate the present value of ecanomic benefits, consideration is given to any
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The Company determines the net
interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period
to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking Into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost' or ‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit nlan when the settlement DCCUrs.

Gratulty

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering
eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent ta 15 days
to one month salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof In excess of six
months depending upon category of employee. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of
service. The Company accounts for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent
external actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year using the projected unit credit
methad Artuarial naing and Insces are rernnnicer ac Mthar Conmnrshansive Incame

Other Long-term Employee Benefits - Compensated Absences

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules, The
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future
encashment/avallment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based on an
independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2023

vil} Inventories
(2) Measurement of Inventory
The Company measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
(b) Cost of Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
Incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling
and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services. Trade
discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production and a
systematic allocation of fixed and wvariable production overheads that are incurred in converting
materials into finished goods.

Other costs are included in the cost of inventories only to the extent that they are incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition,

The cost of inventories is assigned by weighted average cost formula. The Company uses the same cost
formula for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the Company.

{c) Net realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realisable value is
ascertained for each item of inventories with reference to the selling prices of related finished products,

The practice of writing inventories down below cost to net realisable value is consistent with the view
that assets should not be carried in excess of amounts expected to be realised from their sale or use,
Inventories are usually written down to net realisable value item by item. Estimates of net realisable
value of finished goods is based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are
made, of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration
fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the
extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the period. Materials and other
supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cast if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a
decline in the price of materials indicates that the cost of the finished products exceeds net realisable
value, the materials are written down to net reéalisable value.

Amount of any reversal of write-down of inventories shall be recognised as an expense as when the
event occurs.

(d) Valuation of Spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments

Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as Property, Plant and
Equipment if and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with them will flow to
the Company and their cost can be measured reliably. Otherwise such items are classified and
recognised as Inventory.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

viii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liguid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
Investment or other purposes. For an Investment to qualify as a cash equivalent it must be readily convertible to
a known amaunt of cash and be subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. Therefore, an investment
nermally qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of, say, three months or less from the
date of acquisition. For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement cash and cash equivalent includes bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand If any,

ix) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A pravision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (represeritirig
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided
for.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3 15T MARCH, 2023

%) Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when contral is transferred to the
customer which is usually on dispatch / delivery.

Revenue js measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified
in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the
government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely
method) based on underlying schemes and dgreements with customers. Due to the short nature of
credit period given to customers, there is no financing component In the contract,

Interest Income

Interest income Is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 109 - Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when it |s probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can he measured
reliably. The effective Interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the
interest Income or interest expense over the relevant period.

xl) Foreign Currency Transactions

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates whereas presentation currency is. the currency in which the financial statements are
presented. Indian Rupee is the functional as well as presentation currency for the Company.,

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional cu rrency, by
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing
rate whereas non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical cost in a fareign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in
previous Financial Statements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary Item is recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income, any exchange component of that gain or loss |s recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.
Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised n Statement of Profit and Lass,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3 15T MARCH, 2023

®ii) Taxation
Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax expense. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in Equity or in
Other Comprehensive Income,

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or recelvable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date. Y

MAT

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for
the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it Is probable
that the concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year In which the company recognizes MAT credit as an
asset, It is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax
asset. The company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” assel at each reporting date and writes down the
asset to the extent that it is no longer prabable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposas,
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recagnised for;

a temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liahilities in a transaction that |s nat a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction;

b taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxahle
profit may not be avallable. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable tempaorary differerices or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxahle profit will be avallable against which such deferred tax asset can be
realised. Deferrod tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax
benefit will be realised,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected ta apply to the périod when the asset is realised
or the liability Is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
llabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there |s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxahle
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 15T MARCH, 2023

wiif} Financial Instruments
{a) Recognition and intial measuremant

Trade recalvables and debt securities |ssued are initially recognised whan they are criginated. All ather flnancial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual tarms
of the instrurment.

A financial asset or financial liability s initially measured ar Fair valus plus, for an llem not at Fair Value through
Profit and Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly antributable to its acquisition or issus

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a Gnanclil assst s measired at

= amartised cost;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [FVOCD - debt investmeant
- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - equity investment: or

= FWTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subseguent 1o their inltial recognitian, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model far managing financial assets,

A financlal asset s measured at amortised cost IF it meets bath of the fallowing conditions and is not designated as
&t FVTPL:
- the assat [s held within a business madel whose objective Is ta hold assots o collect contractual cash flaws; and

- the cantractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments afl
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

A debn investment Is measured at FVOC IF It meets hoth af the followlng conditions and is not deslgnated as at
FWTPL;

- the asset s held within a business model whase objective 1s achieved by bath collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets: and

~ the contractual terms of the financial assat give rlse on specifled dates (o cash flows that are solely payments af
principal and interest or the prinelpal amount outstanding.

On Initial recognition of an equity investment that Is not held for trading, the Company may Irrevacably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OC| (designated as FVOC! - aquily investment). This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amartised cost or FYOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL This includes all derlvative financial assets. On initial recagnition, the Company may irrevocably designate a
financlal asset that otherwise mests the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or al FYOC) as at FYTRL If
daoing so eliminates or slgnificantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 5T MARCH, 2023

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assers are subsequently measured at falr value, Net gains and
losses, including any interest, are recognised n Statement of Prafit

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective Interest method, The amortised cost s reduced by
Impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment ars recognised | Statemant of Profit and Loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised |n Statement of Profit
and Loss,

Debt investments at FYOC These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income
under the effective interost methed, foreign exchange gains and
lassas and Impairment are recognisad in Statemant of Profil and Loss,
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI, On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated (n OCI are reclassified 1o Statement of
Prafit and Loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measurad ar fair value, Dividends ars
recognised as income In Statement of Profit and Loss unless the
dividend clearly reprasents a recovery of part of the cost of the
Investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCH and are
L nal rec angd Loss

Financial labilities: Class|fication, subsequent measuremant and gains and losses

Financial llabllities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial labillity 15 classilied as ar
FVTPL If it Is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or |t |s designated &s such an initial fecognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair valus and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, ara
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, Other financial liabllitias are subsequently measured at amortised cost
uging the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Lass. Any gain or loss on derecagnitian Is alsa recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

(c) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows fram the financial asset
expire, of It transfers the rights ta receive the contractual cash Hlows In a transactlan in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ewnership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retaln control of the financial asser,

IF the Company anters Inte transactions whereby It transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transforred assets are not
derecognised,

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a (inancial Hability when fts contractual obllgations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.

The Company also derecognises a financlal lability when ts terms are medified and the cash flows under the
modifled terms are substantlally different. In this case, a new financial llabllity based on the modified terms |5
recognised at fair value, The differance between the carrylng amount of the financial llability extinguished and the
new financial liabillty with mod(fied terms |s recognised in Statemant of Prafit and Lass,

(d} Dffsetting

Financial assets and financial liabllitles are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either 1o settle

them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the labllity simultaneously,
o s
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

%Iv) Borrowing Cost

The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asser, The Company recoanises other borrowing costs as an expense |n the period in
which it incurs them. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds Including exchange differences arlsing from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to Interest costs,

A quallfying asset |s an asset that necessarlly takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

v} Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share

The Company calculates basic earmnings per share amounts for profit or loss atrributable 1o ordinary equity holders and, if
presented, profit or |loss from continuing operations attributable to those equity holders,

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders (the numerator) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares autstanding (the denominator) during the period.

The welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and for all perlods presented shall he adjusted
for events, other than the conversion of potential ordinary shares, that have changed the number of ordinary shares outstanding
without a corresponding change In resources.

Diluted earnings per share

The Company calculates diluted earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders and. if
presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable 1o those equity holders.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Company adjusts profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders, and the weighted average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares calculated for
calculating basic earnings per share and adjusted the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be Issued on the
convarsion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares Into ordinary shares. Dilutive potential ordinary shares are deemed to have
been converted into ordinary shares at the beginning of the period or, if later, the date of the jssus of the potential ordinary
shares,




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

®*vi) Impairment Loss
Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recegnises |oss allowances for expectad credit losses an:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
~ financial assets measured at FVOCH- debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carrled at amortised cost are credit-impaired, A financial asset is
‘credit impaired’ when ane or more events that have 3 detrimental impact on the estimated future cash Mews of the financial asse: have
ocourred.

In accordance with Ind AS 109 - Flnancial Instruments, the Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified appreach does net require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recagnises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expectad credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial receanition,

The gross carrying amount of a firancal asset is written off (either partially or In full) to the extent that there Is no realistic prospect af
recovery, This Is generally the case when the Company determines thar the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that eould
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts sublect to the write-off. However, financial assets that ara written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in arder to comply with the Company's pracedures for recovery of amaounts dus.

Impairment of Non Financial Assets

An Impairment loss s the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceads |15 recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Fair value is
the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or pald to transfer a lfabllity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Value in use |< based on the estimated future cash Mows, discounted to thelr presant valye using a pre-tax discount rate.

The Company assesses at the end of each reparting period whether there is any indication that an assat is impaired. |n assessing whether
there is any ind/cation that an asset may be impaired, the Company considers External as well as Internal Source of |nformation. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount for the Individual asset. If, and anly if, the recoverable amount of an asset
|5 less than Its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset js reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairmant loss |s recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset |s carried at revalued amount in accordance with another Standard.

IFit is not possible to estimate the recoverable amaount of the individual asset, the Company determines the recoverzble amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belangs (the asset's cash-generating unit), A cash-generating unit Is the smallest (dentifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are fargely Independent of the cash inflows from other assets or graups of assets. The Company
recognises impalrment loss for a cash-generating unit if, and anly if, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit. The Company allocates impairment loss of cash-generating units first to the carrylng amount of
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating units, if any, and then, to the other assets of the cash-generating units pro rata on the basis of the
carrylng amaunt of each asset in the cash-genarating unit. These reductions |n carrying amounts shall be treated as impairment losses an
Individual assets and recognised accordingly.

xvil) Measurement of Tair values

A number of the Companies accounting policies and disclasures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial
assets and llabilities.

Falr values are categorised Into different levels n a fair value hierarchy based an the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows:

Level 1! quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets ar liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Lavel | that are observable for the asset or liability, eithar directly {i.e. as prices) or
Indirectly {|.e. derived fram prices).

Level 3. inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the falr value of an asset or a liabllity, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the Inputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised [n Its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest leval input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recagnises transfers between levels of the falr value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period durlng which the change has
occurrad,




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

wviii}) Business Combinalions

In accordance with Ind AS 103, the Company accounts for these business combinations using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Company. The consideration transferrad for the business combinatian is generally measured at fair value as at the date the
control Is acquired {acquisition date), as are the net identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwlll that arises s tested annually for impairment.
Any gain on a bargain purchase is recoanised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve If there exists clear evidence of the
underlying reasans for classifying the business combination as resulting in a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain s recagnised directly in
equity as capital reserve. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except to the extent related ta the lssue of debt or eguity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relatlonships with the acquirea, Such
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss,

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair valus at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingant cansideratian that meets
the definitian of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured subsequently and settlement is accounted far within
equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value at gach reporting date and changes in the fair value af the contingent
consideration are recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservabils inputs and
valuation adjustments, If third party Information, such as broker quaotes or pricing services, |s used to measure fair values, then the valuation
team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations mest the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the falr value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

As at As al
3 March, 2023 A1 March, 2022
Mote 6: Other Finoneinl Assets
Uinsecured and Considered Good
Security Deposits 1336 12.91
13.36 T
—_—
Mote 7: Non-current assels (Net)
Unsecured and Cansidered Good
Mon Current Tax Assets (Net) 248 14
2,48 14
Mate 8: Other non-current assets
Unseoured and Considered Good
Prepaid Expenses 2,02 210
202 2,10
MNote 9; Inventories
Row Materinls 6031.93 76261
Pucking Materinls 168.29 244 54
Wark-in-progress 45.96 45.19
Finished Goods (Including goods - in transit of Rs.Nil (PY:
Rs.7.48 Lakhs) 691.53 il 67
Stores and Spores 1.63 8.40
1,540.36 1,722.41

Trade Receivable and Inventories were pledged s primury security for cash credil, which was repaid on |7 December, 2022

{Refer Mote 18).
Rs. Nil (Previous Year: Nil lakhs) amount of inventarics were written off during the current vear. Nil amount of reversal of write down
was accounted durfng the current year,

Cost of inventory recognised os on expense during the year is included in Note 25 ond 26,




NEROFIX FRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 35T MARCH, 2023

of : Teade valiles

Unsecured, Considered Giood
Receivables - credi impaied

Leas: Allowance lor dosbtful trode receivables

As al

31 Mareh, 2023

3.079.54
513

{53.32)

3,13336

—. R

Amount jn Lalils

As nt
21 Maoreh, 2022
135756
1350
2381 06
{13 30)
57.50

Trade Receivabie Inventories were pledusd s pimary securily for cash credit obiained during the curremt vear,which was repand on |7 Decembier, 2022

{Refier Mole 181

For 1erms and conditions relating 1o related panty, Refer Mote 33

Tl Recevable are non-interest benring and credit terms are generally from 3010 120 days,

Asat 31032023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulnrs Lexs thun & fi months -2 1.3 Muore than 3 o
mondls 1 year YEArs yoars YEnrs
11) Undisputed Trade receivables - considesed good 3,068 KR | .06 3,179,454
() Undesputed Trade Receivables = which have significant
imcrense n credit sk > . - g =
(i) Lincisputed Trade Receivables - credil impamed - 6 835 768 - 153
(i} Dispuied Trade Receivables - shich have signdficnnt
inerease in credit risk o - a - S
{wi} Disputed Trade Receivables — crodit impained - 794 .23 1262 3470
Tutal 3, 06H.58 1585 823 30,30 - 313326
As mt I1N32022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Tatsl
Lass thun fi months 12 13 Mure than 3 i
monils 1 venr yrars oA yER |
(1) Undispured Trade receivables — eonsidered good 2181.27 5940 HEY 235754
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which hive significam
incrzuse th credil nsk - e ! . - 5
(Hi1) Unifisputed Triode Receivables — credit impaired el 143 - 13,35
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which huve significant
increass m credil sk - . H r -
{vi] Dizputed Trade Beceivables — eredit impaired - - 1015 - - (LN E]
Tivtsil 1,181.27 69.40 13.07 1732 . - 181.06
An nt As it
31 March, 2023 31 Murch, 2022
Cash on hand 0.33 0.25
Bunks Balances g216 +
B0.49 15
A1 March 2023, the Company had ovailable Rs. il (31 March 2022 B 15743 lakhs} of undrown committed borovang facilites
Note [2: Other Current Assets
Unaegured and Contidered Good
Balancey with Irdireet Tax Authoritics 6206 8950
Trake Advances 4578 XAl
Prepaid Expenses 16,74 15.42
Oiler Receivable - ()
124,60 13187




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITEDR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

Mote 13: Share Caplial

I. Authorsed Shore Copital
Par Value per Share {in Rs)
Mumber of Equity Shares

2. Tssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid
Par Value per Share (in Rs)

Mumber of Equity Shores

As al

31 Murch, 2023

2,0
HI
2,00.00,4:10

2,000
8]

200,000,000

Asat

31 March, 2022

2,000
10
2.00,00.000

2000
K]

ERNN AT

Mumber of shares ot beginning of the yvenr

lssued during the vear

Mumber of shares at the end of the year l

{v\/ Asal
31 March, 2023

2, (3,00, 000

2,000,000, (MM}

3. Duselosure of Shareholding of Promoters
As at 31 March, 2023
Type Fromater No.of shares at | Change During | Nowofl shires at | % of Total % change
Nume the beginning of the yeur the end of the Shares during the year
_ the year year
Equity share of TNR 10 exch fully  |Kansai Nerolu 1,20, 00,000 £0.00,000 2,00, 000,000 1 0% 67%
paid Fainis Limited
Equity share of INR. 10 cach fully  |Polygel 80,00,000 (80,00,000) - 0% - [
pid Industries
Priviite
Limited
Totul 2.00,00,000 - 2,00.00,000
As at 31 March, 2022
Type Promater Mo.of shares at | Change During | No.of shuresat | % of Toial Y chanpe
Mame the heginning of the year the end of the Shures during the vear
the year yelur
Equity share of INR 10 each fully  |Kansai Merolag 1.20,00,000 - | 20,00,000 A 74
paid Paints |.imited
Equity shure of INR 10 esch fully  |Polygel B0, K0 80,00, 00 A0, (4%
paid Industries
Privoie
Limited
Totul 2,00, 00,000 - 2,000,040 (i
4. Terms! rights attached to equity shares
The Company hes issued one class of shares. ie equity shares, which enjoys similar rights in respect of voling pavment of dividend snd
repayment of capital. On winding up of the Compuny, the holders of equity shares will be entitled o recerve the residual nssels of the
Company, remuaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion o the number ol equity shares held
5. Detnidls of Shareholders holding more then 5% of shares;
As at I1st March, 2023 As nf 3151 March, 2022
Name of the shareholder % holding Mumber of % holding Mumber of
Shures Shares
Kansai Merolag Paints Limited 1004 2.00.00,000 6% 120,040,000
[Palygel Industries Private Limied - 40,00,000
40%
Total 100%n 2,00, (11, 00 100%s 200,00, 000
O 30th March, 2023 Kansai Nerolas Paints Limited acquired 80,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 Eaeh {comprising of 40 % paid up share ciipital)
from Polygel Industries Private Limited. Accordingly Kansai Merolac Paints Limited s now [1H % holding company
i, Reconoiliation of the number af shares outstand my:

As i

31 March, 2022

2,100,000

ERTLRCRITT




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

MNote 14 : Other Equity

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Rﬂa!“ e Total
Earnings
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 (826.80) (826.80)
Profiv{Loss) for the period 10,09 10.09
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) - Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability (3.89) (3.89)
Totul Comprehensive Income for the period (B20.60) (820.60)
Balance as at 31, March 2023 (820.60) (820.60)
Particulars Retuined Tuotal
Earnings
Balance as at | st April, 2021 (457.79) (457.79)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (368.13) (368.13)
Other Comprehensive Income/{Expense) - Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability (0.88) (0.88)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (826.80) (826,80)
Balance as at 31, March 2022 (826.80) (826.80)




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3157 MARCH, 2023

Amount in Lakhs

Mo 2 rowings As at As al
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
Secured loan
Term loan from Bank 468.75 |,093.75
468.75 1,093.75

For the current maturities of long term borrowings Refer Note 18 “Other Financial Lisbilities (Current)",

Term loan was taken from HDFC Bank which carries average interest @ 9.50 % per annum. Loan is repayable after | year
moratorium and in 48 months till 28th November 2024, in 16 quarterly instalments along with Interest, from the date of loan.
Loun is secured by following - Primary security is Plant & Equipments at Rudrapur & Dadra Jocation and Letter of Comfort
from Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited for 100% of the total facilities sanctioned, The purpose of loan was for purchase of

assets from Polygel Industries Private Limited.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT J15T MARCH, 2023

Ammount in Lakls

Mote 16: Deferred Tay Assets (ner)

Al

Ik

The major components of deferred tax (Tinbilities) / nssets nrising on aceaunt of timing differences nre as follows:

[Clarge) ¢ (e !
Credii Ax ol Credit
Asat 4 Asat Asni
Partleulars recopnised in | 31 March, recognised in
April, 20622 g 5
1 April, 202 profit or oy 073 I Ageril, 2021 wiolk B ikt A1 Murch, 2022
Tor the period for the perind

Deferred twa linbilities in relation to:
Dafference between written down valuefcapital wosk in progress (70T 335 (B7.63) (B5.85) (.13 (70,97}
of fixed assets a8 per the books of occounts and the |rcome Tax
Act, 1561
Deferredd tnx pssets in relation to:
Diszllowances undér Sectron 40{a)1) of the Income Tax Act, 9,00 1665 215 65 512 38N 0 i)
L]
[rused o losses, restricted o extent of defierred tax ubilities 6197 [ 20,00} 4197 fih 74 1.24 6197
MAT Credil Entitlement = 1.57 157 ;
Deferred tax assets / (labilities) (net) - L57 157 -

Unrecognised deferred tix nssets relile primarily fo unnhsarbed deprecintion asd unabsorbed bustness losses which can be vet ofl ngminst el profin in (e Tulure yiooes
From the year i witich ey oniginate

As nt AsEt
Mareh 31, 2023 Murch 31, 2022

Peductible lemporary diffensmee, unused s fosses and unused s credits Tor which o delerred tay sses has been recopnised are attnibutable o the Gllawing

LUinabsorbed Depreciation (AY 20-21) 163,12 16312
Unalssorbed Depreciation (AY 21-22) 43674 435 76
Lnabsorbed Depreciation {AY 22-23) Jp.54 i

Business Loss (AY 21.22) 511 25,42

Since the Companmy s paymy; MAT for venr ended 305t March, 2023 and hod incurred loss during the yerr endied 30510 March, 2022, no s is pavable as per pommnl
provisions of Incoms Tax, 1961, Accordingly, the calowlation of elTective tas rate is as below

Particulars March 37,
013
Profil Before Tax 10,09
e of Tex of Income Tax 24,049,
Income Tax as per Above Rote 153
Effiect of Expenses that are nod deducnble -
Lilisation of eartier Tox Losses & unabsorbed Depreciation =
351
Tax Payable under MAT 157
Income Tax Recopnised in Stitement of P&L 1.57

The Company confinues 1o pay incame s under older ax regime and hive not opted for lower tax rate pursuant to Taswtion Law (A mesdment ) Ordance, 30100
considering (he secumulsted losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961, The Company plang 1o opt for Jower oy regime once these lasses are utilised

Al At
31 Murch, 2023 3 March, 2022
Note 17 & Frovisions
Provision for Grotwity (Refer Mole 34) 43,09 22493
A3, 11.93




NEROFIX 'RIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT JIST MARCH, 2023

Nites 18 Borrowings

Cash Credit
Working Copilal Term Lian

Current miaturities of lens t=rm borroswings (Refer Note 15)

At in Lalibis

Asal As il
31 March, 2023 31 Murch, 2023
- B42 57
1,.500.00 -
425,00 625,00
2,125.00 1,467,587

Wiorking Copeln] Term Lean (WCTL) of Ka 1300 Laklhes i taken from TATA Cugitnl Finincil Services Limited which earmes
mitzrest @ |0.25 % per annum. WCTL s secured by following primary security is First ehirge on fined assete of Rudnpar &
Dradra Magar Haveli plant. Second part - passw chirgs on enfire curmen sssen, presen) aml fiore of the company with HDFC
bank, Letler of confor from Katisai Nerolae Prints Limited (KMPLY for 100% of ke wotal fcilities sanctioned.

Casht Credit of Re 84737 Lokhs wes loken from HDFC Bonl wihieh comied imeress @ 8.70 % per annum. Cash credil vas
secured by following - Primary  security was Inventory and Recervable of the Campany and Letier of Comfort from Kansai
eralme Paints Limited for 100% of the wotal facifities sanctioned. The pumose of loan was for working capital requirements of

the Conmpany.
Note 1% Trade Puvables
Trude Payables
Tolzl Chetstanding dues of Muro Enterprises and Swall Enferprises (Refer Nofe 38) 226,58 | U 54
Totu! Chtstanfing dues of creditors other tun Micro Enterprises and Small Enremrises 3,050 88 325163
167746 336017
For terms amd conditions relating 1o refaled party, Refier Nole 33
As ot NIAZO2N
Farticulors Outstanding for following periods from
dueote of jayment
Mot Due Less than | 1-2 years 1-3 years Total
year
{MSME 226.58 - - - 126,58
{iiy0hers 237844 1,D6%.67 244 033 345088
{rin) Dinpubed dues - MSME - - . = o
{ivh Disputed dues - Cihers . - 5 ¥ =
Totul L6502 1.068,67 44 033 367746
An ot 31032022
Tarticulirs Dutstaniling Tor following periods from
e dante ol payment
Not Due Leas than | 1-2 years 2- years Taotnl
[iMMSME 108,34 - - 108,54
[iniOiers 1,624 B4 162679 - 3,25].63
(i) Dispated dues - MSME - - - - .
(] Dispuled diss - Oihers = - - I
| Tutal 1,733.38 1,636,793 - - 336017
[vote 20: Other Flunncinl Liabilities
Trade Deposits 13101 14373
Creditors for Capiial Ooods 268 -
Imerest accrued but not due on bormowings 15,78 |1.50
Paynble to ST .76 683
149,73 156
Mate 21; Chiher Current Liabilities
Stutory Oblipations B4 44 7157
Auddvance from Customers 11 64 a7
1%2_?“ 100,44
Notel2: 5 Term Provisions
Provesson for Leave Absences 1418 592
4.5 25
1831 0.7




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2023

As at
31 March, 2023

Amaount in Lakhs

As ot
31 March, 2022

Mote 23: Revenue from (perations

Sole of Products

Sales 15.052.75 11.273.38
Less: Discounts & Rebates 41271 256.01
Tatal Sale of Products 14640004 11,017.37
Other Cperating Revenues
Scrap Sales 40.35 2431
40).35 24 31
Revenue from Operations 14,650.19 11,040.68
Note 23.1 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Compuny derives revenue from sale of products from Following:
Particulars
I. Revenue from contract with Custormers
Sale of products (Transferred al point in time)
Manufacturing
India 14,640.04 11,017.37
{A) 14,640.04 11,017.37
2. Other Operating Revenus
Scrap Sales 40,35 2431
(B) 40,35 2431
Total Revenue {AY-(B) 14,680.39 1104168
Mujor Product Lines
Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants 14,640.04 L1L017.37
14,640.04 11.017.37
Major Product Lines
Upon Delivery ; 14,640.04 [1,017.37
1464004 11,0737
Reconcilintion of revenue from contract with customer as per Ind AS 115:
Revenue from contracts with customer as per the contruct price 15.052.75 11,273.38
Adjustments made to conlract price on accouni of:
Discounts and Rebates {412.71) (256.01)
Other operating revenue 40.35 2431
Revenue from contracts with customer as per the Statement of Profit & Loss 14,680.39 11,041.68
23.2 Contract Balances
Contract Assels
Trade Receivables 3.079.94 2.337.56
Contract Liabilities
Adbvance from Customers 2184 2827
MNote 24: Other Ineome
Other Mon operating Income
Forgign Exchonge Gain (Met) .04 4.60
A %P Revcived 0.10 0.10
r./.’_.;; ol Income Tax Refund 0.21 033
) Eltgrﬂf;ﬁi Shle of Property, Plant & Equipments 0.16 271
x| MUMBA! e
Ja 651 7.74




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3IST MARCH 2023
Somonnl b Lulchs

As at As al
31 March, 2023 3 Mareh, 2022
Mote 25: Cont of Materinls Consumed
Raow Materinl Consumed
Opening Stock T62.01 LINAE.
Add: Purchase 9,937.12 £.044 89
Less: Closing Stock 631,93 762,61
| 0,0RT 90 789144
Facking Materinl Consurred
Orpening Stock 24454 21271
Add: Purchase 1,477.54 |, 30327
Less: Soles 34.29 U673
Lezs: Closing Stock 16829 24454
1.499.50 1 174,77
11,567.40 068,23
Opening Siock
Fintshed Goods b .67 451 88
Work-in-progross 43,19 5333
TG, B 50521
Less: Closing Stock
Fmished Goods 692 53 6 67
Work-in-progress 45.96 43,19
TIR 45 06 86

{31.63) (201.65)




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022

Note 27: Emplovee Beneflits Expense

Salaries and Wages T16.10 604,12
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 28.45 25.14
Staff Welfare Expense .92 11.22
Giratuity Expenses 20.17 13.28
Leave Absences Expenses : B.36 3.74

785.00 657.50

MNote 28: Finance Cost

Interest on Term Loan 167.24 168.01

Interest on Cash Credit 42,74 63.17

Other Finance Cost 3.00 -
212.98 231.18

Noie 29: Depreciation and Amortisation

Diepreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment [34.33 140.93
Diepreciation on Right of Use Asset 5.01 5.01
Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets 190.84 190.84
330.18 336.78

MNote 30: Other es
Freight and Forwarding Charges 600.86 455.93
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 310,16 139.70
Labour Charges ; 200.75 163,72
Rates and Taxes 931 3.56
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 133.75 90,56
Royalty Charges 115.80 8342
Miscellaneous Expenses 44225 388.62
1,812.88 1,325.51

Note 30.1: Pavments to Statutory Auditors'

Auditors remuneration excluding taxes (Included in Miscellaneous Expenses in

Mote no 30)

As Auditor
Statutory Audit 8.00 6.75
Tax Audit 1.00 1.00
Limited Review 3.00 225
Certification and Other Matters - 030
Reimbursements of Expenses 0.20 0.20

12.20 10.50




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

Mote 31: Conti inbiliti d Commitme

Iszue of Bank Guarniee

Disputed Claims

Note 32: Enrnings Per Equity Share

Mumerator;

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders
Denominator:

Weighted Average Mumber of ordinary shares (In Lakhs)

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in Rs.)

Amount in Lakhs

As at As it
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022

T.98 7.08

27.02 -
35.00 7.98

1004 (368.13)

2R 200,040

0,035 {1.84)

—
"-:_:-.T“I'I' Jr."ll_ ;\.-E- n
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A5 AT 3I1ST MARCH, 2023

Note 33: Related Party Diselosures

A related party is b person or entity that is reloted 1o the entity that is preparing ils Financial Stateiments

(0] A person or o close member of that person’s family is related o a reporting entity i that persan;

(1) has control or joint control ol the reporting entity:

(ii} has significant influence over the reporting entity; ar

(iii} is a member of the key manngement personnel of the reporting entity or of o parent of the reporting entity.

(b] An entity is relnted fo a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related

to the others),

(i1} Orne entity is an associute or jolnt venture of the other entity (or an associste or joint venture of o member of @ group of whicl the other entity
is & member),

{iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

{iv) One entity Is a joint venture of @ third entity and the other entity is an associnte of the third entity.

() The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity related 1o the reporting
entity. ITthe reporting entity is itsell’such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity,

[wi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by o person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is 0 member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of'y
purent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member af a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to 1he reporting entity or to the
parent of the reporting entity.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between o reparting entity and a relsted party, regardiess of whether
a price is charged.

Parties where control exist

Ultimate Holding Company

- Kansi Paint Co,, Lid (Japun)
Holding Company

= Kansni Merolac Paints Limited

Oiber related parties with whom transactions have tnken plice during the period:

Entitics with Significant Influence
- Polygel Industries Private Limited ( Upto 30 March, 2023)
Foy Management Mersonnel

- Mr, Anuj Jain, Non Executive Director uplo 29 April 2022

- Mr, Prashant Pai, Won Execulive Direcior

- Mr, Jason Gonsalves, Non Executive Directar

- Mr, Girish Nochane, Non Executive Director upto 30 March, 2023
= Mr, Anil Phatangore, Chief Operating Officer

= Mr. Parag Oak, Chief Financinl Officer upto 27 October, 2022

= Mr. Luv shah, Non Executive Director upto 30 March, 2023

- Mr. Kuldeep Raina, Chief Executive Officer upto & May, 2022

= Ms. Rukmini Subramanian, Company Secretary

- Ivir. Abhijit Matoo, Non Executive Director w.e.l” 3 May, 2022

- Mr. Prashant Murkar, Chief Finuncial Officer w.e.f. 27 Ovtober, 2022

CACH
S &
-
MUMBAI Hlb
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

MNote 33: Related Party Disclosures

Disclosure of transactions with related poarties

Amount in Lakhs

Sr. Mo, |Transactions Asal Asatl
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
1 Sale of finished goods
- Konsai Merolac Paints Limited 2.828.03 235294
- Polveel Industries Privare Limited 0.56
2 Royulty Charges
- Kansai Nermlac Paints Limited | 1580 4342
4 Reimbursement of Expenses Receivable
- Polygel Industries Private Limited - 20u
5 Reimbursement of Expenses
- Parng Cak L.78 495
- Anil Photungare 141,596 3.50
= Prashunt Murkar .10 -
] Remuneration
Pamg Ouk (Remuneration is pald by Kansal Merolag Paints Limited and the same s 12.47 Hal
reimbursed by Company as Deputntion Charges)
Prasham Murkar (Remunerstion is paid by Kensai Nerolae Paints Limited and the 303 -
same i reimbursed by Company as Deputation Charges)
= Anil Phatungare A41.49 ELAE

*As the Tture lnbilities for grotuity end leave encashment are provided on an actuarial valuation busis for the Company as a whole, the amount
pertvining 1o ndividual is not ascertnimable and therefore nol imeluded above.

Diselosure of Balances with related parties

Amonnt in Lakhs

Sr. No. Bulances As ot As al
31 Murch, 2023 31 March, 2022

T Heceivable

- Kansai Merolac Paints Limited 105,93 952
B Advances receivable

- Palygel Industries Private Limiled .03 8.53
9 Pavables

= Kansai Meroloe Paints Limited 12780 43.57

The transactions with related porties are mode on terms equivalent 1o those that prevail in arm's length transactions. This assessment is
undertaken in each financidl period through examining the finoncial position of the relnted porty ond the masket in which the reluted purty
operates. Chnstanding bnlances as ar 31 March, 2023 are unsecured and settlement occurs in cush.

2\
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3IST MARCH, 2023

Amount in Lukhs

MNote 34: Emploves Benefits

A Defined Contribution Plans:

Contribution 1o defined contribution plan, recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss under
Company's Centribution to Pravident Fund in Employee Benefits Expenses for the period is as under;

Particulars

As nt
31 March, 2023

As at
31 March, 2022

Employer's contribution to Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner

28.45

25.14

Defined Benafit Plans:
a. Gratoity

The following tables set out the funded of the gratuity plans and the amount recognised in the Company Financial Statements

s ot 3 st March, 2022 and 315t March, 2023

Particulars As at As al

31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Diefined benefit obligation at the beginning 2318 11,07
Current service cost 18.46 12.60
Interest Expense 1.71 0.6%
Benefit payments from plon asscts - [2.06)
Remeasurements-Due to Financial Assumptions 11.533 [1.3%
Remeasuremenis-Due io Expersience Adjustments (7.65) 228
Remeasurements- actuarial gnins/(losses) - -
Defined bencfit abligation at year end 47.24 23.18

Componenis of Defined Benefit Cost recognized in the Stntement of Profit and Loss under Employes Benefit

Marticulars As ol Asat

31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Current Service Cost 18.46 12.60
Met Interest Cost 1.71 (.68
Diefined Benelit Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss 20,17 13.28

Components of Defined Benefit Cost recognized in the Statem

ent of Other Comprehensive Income:

Comprehensive Income

Particul As at As ol
Artieuiars 31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Actunrinl (gains) / losses on Defined Benefit Obligation 1.89 .88
Defined Benelit Cost recognised in the Statement of Other
3.89 0.88

The nssumptions used to determine net periodic benelit cost o

re el out below:

Asat As at
il 31 Mareh, 2023 | 31 March, 2022
Discount Rate 7.51% T.38%
Sulury Escalation Q.00 . 00%
Weighted aversge duration of the defined benefit obligation

11.48 17.14




Sensitivity Annlysis:

Discount Rate, Salary Escalation Rate and Withdrawal Rate are significant actuarial assumptions. The
change in the Present Yaloe of Defined Benefit Obligation for a change of 100 Basis Paints from Lhe

assumied assumption is given below;

As at As at

Sceanrio |31 March, 2023 | 31 March, 2022

Under Base Scenurio q7.24 23.19

Salary Escalation - Up by 1% 52.48 25.55

Salary Escalation - Down by 1% 42.70 200

Withdrawal Rates - Up by 1% 46,19 2284

Withdrowal Rates - Down by 1% 4B.37 23,50

Discount Rates - Up by 1% 42,78 2118

Discount Rates - Down by 1% 32.49 25.50

Mouortality Rates - Up by 10% 47.22 -

Mortality Rates - Down by 10% 47.26 -

Expected Rate of Return on Planned Asset 7.51% 7.38%

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations

Mortality Table Asml Asat
31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Attained Age Male Female Male Female

20 0.09% 0.09% 0, (5%, R
25 0.059% 0.09% [, [Py VT
30 0, 10% 0. 10% 010 0. 104
is 0,12%, 0.12% 0,12% 0.12%
40 0.17% 0.17%0 0.17% 0.17%
45 0.26% 0.26% 1.26% 0.26%
50 0.44% 0.44% 0.44%, 0.44%,
55 0.75% 0.75% 0.73% 0.75%
6l 1.12% 1.12% 1.12% 1. 12%

C. Compensated Absences

Amount of Rs. £.36 Lakhs { PY 21-22 Rs. 3.74 Lakhs ) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss as an expense for compensated
absences.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

Note 35: Segment Reporting

The Management Committee of the Company. approved by the Board of Directors performs the function of allolment of resources ond
assessment of performance of the Company, Considering the level of aclivities performed, frequency of their meetings and Jevel of Gnality of
their decisions, the Company has identified that Chief Operating Decision Maker function is being performed by the Management
Committee. The financtal information presentad to the Management Committee in the contest of results and for the purposes of approving the
annual operating plan is on a consolidated basis for various products of the Company. As the Management Committee monitors the business
aclivity ns a single business segment viz. Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants, and the sales substantially being in the domestic
market, the financial statement are reflective of the information required by Ind AS 108 “Operating Seements”™,

Revenue from one customer amounted to INR 2,828.03 Laokhs (31 March 2022 INR 2,352.94 Lakhs), arising {rom sales of Adhesives,
Construction Chemienls and Sealants,




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023
MNote 36: Finnnelal Instruments: Categories of Finineial ln

A, Categories of Financial Instrument

The following table shows the carrying amounts and i values of finnncinl sssets and financial liokilities, insluding their levels in the fair volue
hierarchy,
Amuount in Lokhs

Asat Fair Value Fuir Value Adnortised Cost
31 March, 2023 through Profit  through Other

At Loss Comprehensive

Income

Finuncial Assets
Securily deposit - . 1336
Trade Hecelvables = . 3,074 84
Crsh and Cash Equivalent E - £9.49
Finnncinl Linbilitics
Long Term Borrowings . = 46875
Short Term Borrowings . - 2,125.00
Trade Payables . . 187746
Other Current Finaneinl Linbilities - - 149.73
As at Fuir Value Fair Valie Amaortised Cost
31 March, 2022 through Profit  through Other

nnd Loss Comprehensive

Ineome

Financinl Asseis
Security deposit . - 1291
Trade Receivables - . 215756
Cash and Cosh Equivalent : = - b2s

Finuneinl Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings - - 1,093.75
Short Term Borrowings - - 1 467 57
Trade Puynbles - - 3,360.17
Oithier Current Financial Linbilines - - 162 56

B. Fair Value Hierarchy

Thie management assessed (he carrying value of Ananciol assets and linbilities cortied 60 ‘omortised cost’ approximate their fair value lerpely due
1o the short-tesm maturities of thess instruments,

The following table provides the fuir valee measurement hierarely of the Company's nssets and linbilities,

Fair vitlue mensurement nsing

As at Duated prices in Sgnificant Shgnificant
31 March, 2023 active markets  observable inputs  unobservable
inputs
(Level 1) fLevel 2) {Level 3)
Assels carried sl amortised cost
Security deposit - - 13.36
Trede Receivnbles - . 3.079.94
Cash and Cash Equivalent : - - BG.49
Linbilities carvied it amortised cost
Long Term Barrowings - - A6R 7S
Short Term Borrowings - - 2,125.00
‘Trade Mayables . " 3,677 46
Other Current Financizl Liabilities - - - |48.73
Fair value measurement nsing
As at Cuated prices in Skgnificant Significant
31 March, 2022 netive markets  observable inputs unohservahle
inpts
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Assels corried 8t nmortised cost
Security deposit - - 129l
Trade Recewnbles - - 1357 56

Cash and Cush Equivalent - - 025
Linbilities carried at amortsed cost

Liong Term Bommowings - - 1.093.75

Short Term Borrowings - - | 46T 57

Trade Paynbles - - 3.360,17
Other Current Financial Linkilities - - 162 56




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 318T MARCH, 2023
i inl Risk Manngement

The Company's principal financial linbilities comprise short term loans and borrowings, rods puyables and other payablcs. The main purpose of these
fmanciul liabilitics is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantess 1o support its operations. The Company's principal Gouncisl nssets
include loans 1 employees, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from s operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's finnneial risk aetivities sre governed by appropriste policies and
procedures and financinl risks are identified, measured and managed in nccordance with the Company's policies and nsk objectives, The Company's
financis! risk munagement policies ure set as per the guidelines.

i) Munrket Rigk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuste heoause of changes in market prices, Market price
comprises three types af risks: interes) rute risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. The oljective of
market risk monagement is 10 manege and control merket risk exposures within acceplable paramelers, while optimizing the return. I respect of
mimetary asscis and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company's policy is to ensure that (18 net exposure 15 kept o an secepteble level

i} Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rites, The
Compuiny's exposure 1o e foreign cumency risk arising mainly due to its operating activitles and thus the risk of changes in foreign exchiange ries
relates primarily to trade puyables.

The Compiiny has oo exposure 1o foreign currenoy risk.

1il) Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk of" financial loss 1o the Company if' a customer or counterparty (o a financial instrument fuils (o meet its contracunl obligatons,
and ariscs principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans . The carrying amounts of financiol sssets represent the maximum
credit risk exposure.

Trade Receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charactersstios of each customer, The Risk Monsgemenl Commilice has
established a eredit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and
delivery terms and conditions are offercd. The Company's review includes financinl stutements, eredil agency information, mdustry information and in
smme cases bank references. Sales limits are established for each customer and reviewed constantly. Any sales excestling those limits require spproval
from the mansgement,

Finaneial Instruments and Cash Deposits
Credit risks from balances with banks and financial institutions is munaged by the Company's Treasury Department in aecordanee with the Company®s

policy, Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within eredit limits assigned (o each counterparty. The limits are s=i
to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure o make payments,

iv) Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting the oblipations associated with its financial linbilities that are setiled by
delivering cash or another finencinl assel, The Company's approach (o maneging liquidity i 10 ensure, os (ar as possible, ot it will huve sufficient
lguidity 1o meet its liobilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaccepiable Insses or nsking damegs 1o

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s finencinl linhilitics:
Amnunt in Lukhs

Year Ended 31 March, 2023 | Year Ended On Upto |3 months ta| & months | 1 year to |3 yenrs and Total
Demand | Imonths | 6 months | tol yesr | 3 years ahove
Darrawings 31-03-2023 - 156,25 156,25 1.812.50 468,75 - 2.593.73
31-03-2022 842,57 625.00 625,00 468.75 1,561.32
Trade Payables 31-03-2023 - 167746 - - - - 1.677.46
31-03-2022 3360.17 3.361.17
Oither Financial Linbilities 31-03-2023 149.73 - - - - - 149,73
31-03-2022 162.56 - = - - 162 56
Total 31-03-2023 149.73 | 3,833.71 156,25 LEI2.50 468,75 . 6,420.94
31-03-2022 L0513 | 3.360.17 - G25.00 62500 46875 6,084.05

S\
5




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

Noute 38: Disclosure wnder the Miero, Small snd Mediom Enterprises Develupment Act, 2006 are provided as under Tor the period 2022-23, ta the

extent the Company hus received intimation from the *Suppliers” regarding their staotus under the Aet.

Amount in Lalkhs

Particulars

A At
31 March, 2023

As at
31 March, 20022

& The principal gmount and the interest due thereon remaining unpwid to any supplier os of the end of ench
secaunting period,
= Pringipal amount due to mizro and small entérprises

= lnlerest due on ohotve

b. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the
mmounts af the payment mede to the supplier beyond the appointed day durng ensch sccounting period

c. The amount of inferest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid bu
beyond the uppointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 20046

d. The amount of interest secrued and remaining uspaid st the end of ench sceounting perod.

e The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding periods, wniil such date when
the interest dues as shove sre actunlly paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance us a deduetible
expenditure under Section 23 of MEMED Act, 2006

236,58

I08 .54




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2023

Amount in Lakhs
Notie 39: Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capitel management, capital includes issued equity capital and all ather equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary ohjective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The current capital structure of the Company
is equity based with financing through long term borrowings.

As al As al
31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022

Long Term Borrowings including Current Maturities 1,093.75 1,718.75
Short Term Borrowings 1,500.00 842.57
Less; Cash and Cash Equivalents 89.49 0.25
Net debt 2,504.26 2,501.07
Equity 1,175.40 1,173.20
Total capital 117940 1,173.20
Capital and net debt J3,683.66 3,734.27
Gearing ratio 68% 69%

There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrawing in the current period,




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT JIST MARCH, 2023

MNote 40 - Hafio Analysis nnd its Elements

Partioulirs MNumeralor Denomingtar | 31 March, 2023 {31 Muarch, 2022 % Varinnee Rewson for Variance
Current Ratio Current Assels Current Liabalities 08en {183 4%
Dbt Eiguity Totnl Debi Shorcholders 2130 218 1%
Equity
Debt Serviee Covernge Ratio Enrnings for debt [Debi gervice = 0.46 032 104 3% Dhie o dncrease in Prisei pal
service = Nat [ntenest & Leass FERIYMENL T CurTEnl vear
profit afler taxes + |Payments =
Mon-cash Principal
operating expenses | Repaymenis
ROE Mat profit afler Avernpe 0.85% =27.1% 103% There i improvensent due (o
toxes Shareholders inarease soles & profit
Uity eneration,
Inventory Turnover Cost of poods sold [Average Inventory 7.07 5.80 2.0
Trude Recelvables Turmover Met eredit sales = | Avernge Trode £38 i B 11.2%
Gross eredil sales - | Recsivible
sales return
Trude Faynbles Turnover Het credi Average Trade ie in I 1%
purchases = Gross |Payables
credit purchases -
purchase return
Met Copitnl Tornover et sales = Towml  [Working copital = (11.78) [12ad) 5.2%
sales - sales relurn | Current assels -
Current liabulitics
Met Frofit ratio et priofit Met Gales 0.07% =33 -102 1% There is improvenen) dug
Lo incrense sales & profil
generatian,
Return en Capital Employed |Earnings before  |Capital Employed % 4% -261.2% There is improvement due
interes) pnd laxes  |= Tangible Net 1o inerense soles & profin
Waorth + Towl teneraiian,
Debil # Deferred
Tax Liabiliy
Return on Investinent Iterest (Finnnee | Investen) NA MA NA
Incame)

Asab 31 March, 2023 Company's Current Liabilities exceeds Current Assets by

Re 617 lukhs [ Met - ofl current maturities of long term borrowines of Rs 625

lakhs) Fowsver, the poitg concam msumplion is considered appropriate as the Company lns obtainsd letier of fnancol support from the bolding company Kbasmn
Merolne Peints Limited in order 1o meet its lighilities, existing at the dote of halunce sheat, s and when they fll due within o period of ene year from the balance sheer




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3IST MARCH, 2023

Mote 41: Other Statutory Information

(1The Company does nat have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initinted or pending ugainst the company for holding any Aenami
property,
{ifThe Company docs not have any transactions with companies steuck off,
{iilyThe Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
(11The Company hus ot traded or invested in Crypio eurrency or Virual Currency during the financial year,
(v)The Company has not advanced or loaned of invested funds to any other personis) or entity{ies), meluding foreign entities (Iniermediaries) with the
understending that the Intermediary shall;

{n)direetly or indirectly fend or Invest in ofher persons or entities ientified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ullimate
Beneficienes) or

(b)provide any grarantee, security or the ke to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
{vilThe Company hes not received any fund from sny person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

{mjdireatly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in sny manner whistsoever vy or on behal ol the Funding Marty (UNimote
RBeneficiories) or

(bprovide any gusrantes, security or the |ike on behalf nf the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(viiyThe Compary has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of necounts that hiss been surrendered or diselossd gs [neome during
the vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions af the Income Tax Acl, 1961

Note 42: Comparative Figures for Previous Period

Previous year figures are regrouped ond recest wherever necessary to make them comparable with the figures of the curren e,

2t

As per our attached report of even date TFar and on behnllof Board of Directors of Nemofix Private Ligated
o
T e
e
ForSRBC & COLLP Prashant Pal Prastiant Murksr
Chartered Accountonts Chief Financial DTicer
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[

I}/ Rulmini manian
Director Company Secretary

DIN 08245250 ACS 20207

per Anil Jobanpuira
Partner
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BOARD’S REPORT
Dear Members,

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the 4th Annual Report and the Audited
Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 (“year under
review/ FY 2022-23”).

The section on Management Discussion and Analysis includes a review of the financial
performance of the Company — highlights of the Company’s standalone financial results, key
financial ratios etc.

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
A. Introduction

Nerofix has its operations in India and caters to customers all over India & Nepal. The focus
of the Company is to increase the footprint of the Company Pan — India and achieve profitable
growth by increasing the productivity of its sales force and manufacturing units and also reduce
fixed costs in all areas of operations, and it is yielding the desired results.

B. Industry Progress

Nerofix started operations in December 2019. Nerofix has a strong presence in business
segments like Retail, Industrial, Private Label & Ad-Mixtures, with a complete basket of
products in Adhesives, Construction chemicals, Paint & Ad-mixture category. Our strong
product portfolio with well-known brands like Nerofix, Turbofix, Sumo, Vishwas & Scott No
1 are the most trusted choice of customers & users.

Scott No 1 was established in 1956 & is among the pioneers in waterproofing category in India
with a high quality product lineage. Nerofix product range comprises of some of the most
differentiated products like anti termite, anti-fungal & DBP free adhesives.

Nerofix has a Pan India distribution network in retail & OEM segments with a strong presence
in Automotive, Modular Furniture & footwear segment.

C. Outlook
We have identified the key business drivers & will extensively work on product category
whitespaces & geographical whitespaces to occupy a decent share in the category.

D. Financial Highlights
A Summary of the Company’s standalone financial results for the year ended March 31, 2023

(FY 2022 — 23) vis-a-vis standalone financial results for the previous year FY 2021 — 22, is as
under:



(Rs. in crore)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Gross Sales and Other Operating Income 112.98150.93 71.06112.98
Net Sales and Other Operating Income 110.42146.80 69.98110.42
Profit / (Loss) Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 1.995.53 2.211.99
Less: Depreciation and Amortisation 3.373.30 3.37
Profit / (Loss) Before Interest and Tax (1.38)2.23 (1.16)(1.38)
Add: Other Income 0.080.07 0.030.08
Less: Interest 2.312.13 2.552.31
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (3.69)10.09 (3.71)(3.68)
Less: Tax (including deferred Tax) 0.01 Nil
Extraordinary ltems Nil0.04 Nil0.01
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (3.69)0.05 (3.71)(3.69)
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) Nil Nil
Total Comprehensive Income for the year Nil Nil
Dividend NIL NIL

Gross Sales and other operating income for the year aggregated to Rs. 112.98150.93 crores as
compared to Rs. 71.06112.98 crores for the previous year. Net Sales and other operating
income for the year aggregated to Rs. 110.42146.80 crores as compared to Rs. 69.98110.42
crores.

The Company had taken various initiatives to reduce material cost and operational costs.

These initiatives helped the Company in the current year to keep the operational costs under
control and compensate inflation.

Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax (PBDIT) for the year is Rs. 1.995.53 crores as
compared to Rs. 2.211.99 crores for previous year, whereas Loss for the year is Rs. 3.69 0.05
crores as compared to Loss of Rs. 3.713.69 crores for the previous year.



The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act,
2013, during the year.

There are no significant or material orders passed by any Regulators, Courts or Tribunals
against the Company which would impact the going concern status and Company’s operations
in future.

There has been no change in the nature of business during the year. There have been no material
changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred during the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and
the date of this Report.

Transfer of Reserves

In view of the minimum profit reported by the Company, no amount is proposed to be
transferred to any reserves.

Dividend

In view of the minimum profit reported by the Company, the Directors do not recommend any
dividend for the year under review.

Key Financial Ratios

Key Ratios FY 2022 — 2023 FY 2021 — 2022
Current Ratio 0.83 0.80 0.960.83
Debt Equity Ratio 2.182.20 1.972.18
Operating Profit Margin (%) 2% 3 %2%
Net Profit Margin (%) (3 %)0.07% (5 %)-3.70%
Return on Net Worth (31%) (24%)

G. People (Human Resources)

The company staff turnover ratio is very low, which is an indication of the high satisfaction
level at employee level. At Nerofix, employees are a central element of the organization.
Employees contribute towards the organization’s goals by their skills and competencies.

The workforce is highly aligned to the Company’s goals through various communication
systems formally and informally. The Organizational Business Plan is aligned with the Key

Result Areas for each position. Development of employees is of utmost importance.

The Company has implemented a performance improvement, appraisal and incentive system.



The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to report genuine concerns and grievances. The
policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use the Whistle
Blower mechanism.

The Company wishes to put on record its deep appreciation of the co-operation extended and
efforts made by all the employees. The employee strength of Nerofix is 114 as
on 31% March, 2023.

2. Director’s Responsibility Statement

As stipulated under the provisions contained in Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013, (‘the Act’), the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and
belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by it, hereby states that:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial
Year and of the loss of the Company for that period;

the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

the directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern
basis;

the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.



4. Directors

In terms of the provisions of the Act, Mr. Jason Gonsalves, Director of the Company would be
liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM of the Company and being eligible offers himself
for re-appointment.

Mr. Anuj Jain resigned as the Director of the Company with effect from 29th April, 2022.

Mr. Abhijit Natoo has been appointed as the Director of the Company with effect from 5th
May, 2022.

Mr. Luv Shah and Mr. Girish Nachane have resigned as Directors of the Company with effect
from 31st March, 2023.

The Board has placed on record its appreciation to the contributions made by Mr. Anuj Jain,
Mr. Luv Shah and Mr. Girish Nachane during their term as Directors of the Company.

None of the Directors are disqualified for appointment / re-appointment under Section 164 of
the Act.

During the year five board meetings were held during FY 2022-23 on 29th April, 2022, 28th
July, 2022, 27th October, 2022, 31st January, 2023 and 31st March, 2023.

3. Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Kuldeep Raina resigned as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from
6th May, 2022 and Mr. Parag Oak resigned as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with
effect from 27" October, 2022.

Mr. Prashant Murkar, Chief Financial Manager and Ms. Rukmini Subramanian, Company
Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel in terms of Section 203 of the Act.

7. Statutory Auditors

At the 2nd Annual General Meeting of the Company, the Shareholders had approved the
appointment of S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
324982E/E300003) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a period of 5
(five) years from the conclusion of 1st Annual General Meeting of the Company till the
conclusion of the 6th Annual General Meeting of the Company, in terms of the applicable
provisions of Section 139(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014.

The Auditors’ report on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year under
review, as given by the Statutory Auditors, is disclosed in the Financial Statements forming



part of this Annual Report. The Auditors’ report is clean and there are no qualifications in their
report. Also, no frauds in terms of the provisions of Section 143(12) of the Act have been
reported by the Statutory Auditors in their report for the year under review.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments.

8. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013

There are no loans, guarantees given or investments made by the Company during the period
under review, under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

9. Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions entered into during the year under review were approved by the
Board of Directors, from time to time and the same are disclosed in the Financial Statements
of the Company for the year under review.

In terms of the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, all contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered into by
the Company with its related parties, during the year under review, were in the ordinary course
of business of the Company and on an arm’s length basis. There were no material Related Party
Transactions during the year. Accordingly, Form No. AOC-2, prescribed under the provisions
of Section 134(3) (h) of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for
disclosure of details of Related Party Transactions, which are “not on arm’s length basis” and
also which are “material and on arm’s length basis”, is not provided as an annexure to this
Report as it is not applicable.

10. Risk Management Policy

The Company’s Risk Management Policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Company to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk Management Policies and Systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

11. Corporate Social Responsibility

As the Company does not have a net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover
of rupees one thousand crore or more, or a net profit of rupees five crore or more, during the
financial year, the provisions of Section 135 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not
applicable for the Company.



12. Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

The management of the Company provides a very conducive work environment to all
employees of the organization which includes corporate office, branches, and manufacturing
locations etc. During the year, provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”) are applicable to the employees
and non-employees as well i.e. business associates, vendors, trainees etc.

During the financial year under review, the Company did not receive any complaints of sexual
harassment and no cases were filed under the POSH Act.

13. Particulars regarding Employees

As required by the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, we report
that none of the employees of the Company are covered under this Section.

14. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & Foreign Exchange

The statement giving the particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption
and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act
read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed to this Report as
Annexure 1.

15. Share Capital

The paid up Equity share capital of the Company as at 31% March, 2023stood at Rs. 20 crores.
During the year under review, the Company did not issue any Equity Shares. Kansai Nerolac
Paints Limited and Polygel Industries Private Limited have entered into a Share Purchase
Agreement whereby Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited has purchase 40% of the stake held by
Polygel Industries Private Limited. Consequent to the said purchase, the Company has become
a 100% subsidiary of Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited.

16. Extract of the Annual Return

An extract of the Annual Return in Form No. MGT-9, as required in terms of the provisions of
Section 92(3) of the Act and the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, is
annexed to this Report as Annexure 2.

17. Secretarial Audit

Secretarial audit is not prescribed for the Company as it not a listed company or a public
company.

18. Cost Audit

As the Company has not attained the minimum overall annual turnover of Rs. 100 crore or
more from all its products and services during the financial year and the aggregate turnover of



Rs. 35 crores or more from any individual product(s) or service(s), the provisions of the Sec
148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has maintained cost records but the requirement of cost audit does not apply.
19. Annexures

Annexure 1 and 2 attached to the Board’s Report form an integral part of the report.

20. Acknowledgement

Your Directors wish to express their grateful appreciation for the co-operation and support of
our customers, parent company, shareholders, suppliers, vendors, financial institutions,
bankers, collaborators, regulatory authorities and the society at large.

Deep appreciation is also recorded for the dedicated efforts and contribution of the employees
at all levels for their focus, commitment and hard work in driving the consistent growth of the
Company.

FOR AND BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Prashant Pai Jason Gonsalves
Director Director
DIN 08115481 DIN 08245250

Date: 2nd May, 2023



Annexure 1 to the Board’s Report

Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo, as prescribed under Rule 8(3) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A. Conservation of Energy-

The Company is giving priority to energy conservation measures including regular review of
energy generation, distribution and consumption and effective control on utilization of energy,
in its manufacturing facilities at Dadra (UT) & Rudrapur.

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

+ Process

Batch Process Time cycle of Solvent Based adhesives reduced by 20% by way of Process
Optimization i.e. Agitator modification, bottom entry homogenizer, Agitation speed etc.
Optimzation trials completed successfully in March 2023 and implantation started from
April 2021. Capacity increased by 20-25% which has resulted into reducing one shift at
Silvassa plant from 24 hours to 16 Hours.

+ Energy

Solar Energy plant commissioning completed and made it functional from Dec 2020.It
generates about 5% of Total demand/consumption of Electricity units.

Requisite data in respect of Energy Consumption are given below:

Particulars

Year ended 31/03/2023

Year ended 31/03/2022

(A) Power & Fuel Consumption

1. Electricity

(a) Purchased

generator units

Units (in 000° kwh) 421788412394 421788
Total amount (Rs in Lakhs) 39.40 38.65
Rate per unit (Rs.) 9.55 9.16
(b) Own generation N.A. N.A.
* Through diesel generator
Units (in ‘000° kwh)
Units per litre of oil
Cost per unit (Rs.)
* Through steam turbine/ N.A. N.A.

Units per litre of fuel

Oil /gas

Cost per unit




Particulars | Year ended 31/03/2023 | Year ended 31/03/2022

(B) Consumption per unit of production

Products (Units in M.T.)
Electricity (Kwh/M.T.) 23.78 21.81
(Rs./M.T.) 401.81 420.11
Furnace-oil /fuel (I1tr)(Kwh/M.T.)
(Rs./M.T))
Coal (Specify quality) N.A. N.A.
Others (specify) N.A. N.A.

B. Technology absorption -

During the year, the R&D Centre of the Company was engaged in supporting all the business

through innovations and undertook multi-fold research activities including:

e Development of new products/formulations.

e Development of effective processes and streamlining existing processes and reducing
waste.

e Optimizing effluent treatment processes.

Benefits Derived as a result of the above R& D:-

With its continuous endeavour to explore and apply new and innovative chemistry for the
benefit of customers, the R&D Centre continued to develop several new products during the
year.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo-
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2022 — 2023 | 2021 — 2022
i) Foreign Exchange Earnings Export Sales (FOB) | 7.22pending 7.22
if) Foreign Exchange Outgoing 2.62pending 2.62
Import of Raw Material 628pending 628
Foreign Travelling Expenses NIL NIL
Sales Commission NIL NIL
Legal & Professional Fees NIL NIL

FOR AND BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Prashant Pai Jason Gonsalves
Director Director
DIN 08115481 DIN 08245250
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